
St Ignace Zoom is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Topic: City Council Meeting 

Time: Feb 6, 2023 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89923336882 

 

Meeting ID: 899 2333 6882 

One tap mobile 

+13092053325,,89923336882# US 

+13126266799,,89923336882# US (Chicago) 

 

Dial by your location 

        +1 309 205 3325 US 

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 

        +1 646 931 3860 US 

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

        +1 305 224 1968 US 

        +1 564 217 2000 US 

        +1 669 444 9171 US 

        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

        +1 689 278 1000 US 

        +1 719 359 4580 US 

        +1 253 205 0468 US 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

        +1 360 209 5623 US 

        +1 386 347 5053 US 

        +1 507 473 4847 US 

Meeting ID: 899 2333 6882 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbQARYNI4U 



 

           
 

    CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

Monday, February 6, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers/Virtual Hybrid Attendance Meeting 

Zoom Meeting ID: 899 2333 6882 
 

****A G E N D A**** 
 

1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Invocation 
4) Roll Call 
5) Additions to Agenda 
6) Public Comment Regarding Agenda Items (2-minute limit) 
7) Consideration of Minutes of January 23, 2023 
8) Old Business 
9) New Business 

A. 2023 Poverty Exemption Policy 
B. Police Chief Contract 
C. Marina Temporary Support Staff 
D. Resolution 23-06—Jeep the Mac 
E. Resolution 23-07—Arts Dockside  
F. 2023 Street Paving Bids 
G. Resolution 23-08--Street Millage Renewal  
H. Interim Police Chief Pay 
I. Interim Management Team Pay 

10) Consideration of Bills  
11) Public Comment Regarding Non-Agenda Items (3-minute limit) 
12) Management Report 
13) Committee Reports 

A. Planning Commission 
B. Finance Committee 
C. Streets Committee 

14) Council Member Comments                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
 
 
 

City of St. Ignace is an equal opportunity employer and provider  
 



City of St. Ignace 
Council Proceedings 

(Unofficial) 
 
A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, January 23, 2023 in the 
City Hall Council Chambers as a hybrid attendance meeting with Zoom video conference 
available. 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor LaLonde, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  Councilmember Gustafson led the invocation.                                         
 
PRESENT FROM CITY COUNCIL:  Councilmembers Cronan, Fullerton, Gustafson, Mayor 
LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
 
ABSENT:  None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Bill Fraser, DPW Director; Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer; Stephanie 
Baar, Assistant to the City Manager; Charles Palmer, City Attorney; Allen Mitchell, Interim-
Police Chief; Scott Marshall, DDA Director.  
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA  
Councilmember Pelter – Old business, pay request from Anthony Brown. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – AGENDA ITEMS (2-min limit) 
Public comment was received regarding support for the Treasurer’s Support Agreement. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 9, 2023, REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING & JANUARY 11, 2023, SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING: 
It was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
both the minutes of the January 9, 2023 Regular Council meeting and the minutes of the 
January 11, Special Council meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
A.  MACKINAC COUNTY FIRE TRUCK FUNDING REQUEST 
 
Assistant Baar presented a letter to Council that will serve as a request to Mackinac County for 
assistance with funding the new Sutphen fire truck.  The letter will include signatures from each 
entity in the current Fire Agreement, as well as specifications of the truck being purchased. 
It was moved by Councilmember Cronan, seconded by Councilmember Williford, to approve the 
letter of request to Mackinac County. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan,  
         Fullerton, Gustafson and Mayor LaLonde. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADDITION TO THE AGENDA 
 
Councilmember Pelter – Pay Request from Anthony Brown 



Councilmember Pelter inquired about unpaid invoices regarding Mr. Brown’s attorney fees.  
Mayor LaLonde requested City Attorney Palmer to follow up with Mr. Brown regarding the 
invoices. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A.  RESOLUTION 23-04 DOCK 3 UTILITY EASEMENT 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A UTILITY EASEMENT TO CLOVERLAND ELECTRIC  
 

The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember Fullerton, supported by 
Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis: 
 
WHEREAS: It is in the best interest of the City of St. Ignace to grant an easement, on 

property known as TAX# 052-680-009-00 & 052-002-001-15, to 
Cloverland Electric Cooperative, Inc. for the purpose of electric service to 
403 Ferry Lane Dock 3; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED: that the City of St. Ignace does approve the granting of this easement; 
now further  

 

BE IT RESOLVED: that the City of St. Ignace has authorized Bill Fraser, Director of Public 
Works, to carry out the granting of this easement; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED:  said easement was approved by the St. Ignace City Council on January 
23, 2023, and was executed by Bill Fraser on January 24, 2023. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmember Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem  
         St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan and Fullerton. 
No:  None. 
Absent:  None. 
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
B.  RESOLUTION 23-05 BOARDWALK INN UTILITY EASEMENT 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A UTILITY EASEMENT TO CLOVERLAND ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVE 

 
The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember Fullerton, supported by 
Councilmember Cronan: 
 
WHEREAS: It is in the best interest of the City of St. Ignace to grant an easement, on 

property known as TAX# 052-017-001-50, to Cloverland Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. for the purpose of electric service to property owned by 
Ganesha Studios, LLC; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED: that the City of St. Ignace does approve the granting of this easement; 
now further  

 



BE IT RESOLVED: that the City of St. Ignace has authorized Bill Fraser, Director of Public 
Works, to carry out the granting of this easement; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED:  said easement was approved by the St. Ignace City Council on January 
23, 2023, and was executed by Bill Fraser on January 24, 2023. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers  
         Williford, Cronan, Fullerton and Gustafson. 
No:  None. 
Absent:  None. 
Resolution declared Adopted.  
 
C.  WASTEWATER PLANT UV UNITS PURCHASE 
 
DPW Director Fraser informed Council that the Wastewater Treatment Plant is in need of 
rebuilding 25 UV units.  The units for the current system are provided by Trojan Technologies 
for an estimated $48,600 with labor included.  The expense will be considered under the City’s 
RR&I reserve funds. 
After some discussion, it was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by 
Councilmember Williford, to approve the purchase to rebuild the units with Trojan Technologies. 
 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, 
         Fullerton, Gustafson and Mayor LaLonde. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
D.  TREASURER’S OFFICE SUPPORT AGREEMENT 
 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley requested Council’s approval to allow former City Clerk/Treasurer, 
Renee Vonderwerth, to assist with the City’s Chart of Account conversion.  An agreement was 
presented to pay Ms. Vonderwerth a rate of $20 per hour for up to 100 hours of work through 
July 1, 2023. 
It was moved by Councilmember Cronan, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, to approve 
the support agreement as presented. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, Fullerton, Gustafson, 
         Mayor LaLonde and Councilmember Pelter. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
E.  POLICE CHIEF APPOINTMENT 
 
Mayor LaLonde requested Council’s consideration in appointing a Police Chief from the three 
final candidates:  Allen Mitchell, Joseph FitzGerald and Kevin James. 
After brief discussion, it was moved by Councilmember Cronan, seconded by Councilmember 
Williford, to approve appointing Kevin James as the next Chief of Police. 
 



Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, Gustafson and Pelter.  
No:  Councilmembers Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde and Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis. 
Motion carried four to three. 
 
F.  CITY MANAGER RECRUITMENT 
 
Assistant Baar reviewed with Council an updated job description, as well as a draft 
advertisement for the position of City Manager.  It was the consensus of Council to post the ad 
in local area newspapers and online with the Michigan Municipal League (MML), the 
International City/County Management Association (ICMA) and Indeed.   
It was moved by Councilmember Cronan, seconded by Councilmember Pelter, to approve 
posting the updated advertisement, accepting applications for the position of City Manager 
through February 23rd, and scheduling a Special Council meeting for Monday, February 27th to 
review all applications received. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Cronan, Fullerton, Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, 
         Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
G.  FINANCIALS 
 
Assistant Baar provided Council with Revenue-Expense reports that included the Amended 
2022 Budget, End Balance 2022 and the Amended Budget for 2023.  After some review and 
discussion, it was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, 
to approve the December 2022 financial reports. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Fullerton, Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor 
         Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford and Cronan. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley noted that there was a miscalculation in the list of bills presented in 
the Council packets.  The amount originally reported was $57,994.61. The updated total amount 
is $55,414.99. 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
paying the bills in the correct amount of $55,414.99.  

A-1 Outdoor Services Fertilize Parks $349.00 

Airgas DPW-Rental Gases $173.95 

Amazon Dec 2022/Jan 2023 Statements $4,418.08 

Andy's Feed Station DPW-D. Packer Dryshed Boots $179.99 



Arnold's Refrigeration LBE Repairs $4,033.51 

Arrow Signs CHALL-Basement Rental Office Parking Signs $97.48 

BC Pizza LBE-Programs $159.00 

Belonga Plumbing & Heating LBE Parts $130.35 

Brother WRT Plant Printer $249.99 

BS&A Software Assessing Software Annual $955.00 

City St Ignace WTAX-Gyftakis House, Wtax-Cemetery $933.30 

Craig Kammers Boardwalk Pavers $682.00 

Dixon Engineering Inc. Water Tank Inspection $15,750.00 

Election Source Elections Annual Maintenance Contract $615.00 

ETNA  $3,366.00 

Ferguson Waterworks Water Line Parts $154.42 

GFL Dumpsters-Boardwalk,Gyftakis House $4,705.40 

Gordon Food Service LBE - Concession $499.31 

Kimball Midwest DPW Supplies $417.43 

Mackinac Plumbing LBE Parts $191.40 

Mackinac Straits Shooters 
Association SIPD Annual Pass $75.00 

Michigan State Firemen's 
Assoc Book sets $232.11 

Microbiologics WTR Plant Supplies $263.28 

Moran Township Wtax-Water $113.02 

NAPA Auto Parts December 2022 Statement $1,184.34 

NCL WWTR Supplies $732.32 

NSI Lab Solutions WWTR Plant Supplies $603.00 

Perani's Hockey World LBE - Skates $3,160.20 



Quickserve On-
site/Advantage Fleet T-43 Wester Star Repair $802.50 

Sault Evening News Boardwalk Contractor Ad $52.35 

Sault Printing Co. CHALL Copier/Fax; CMGR Printer $270.38 

Spartan Nash December 2022 Statement $563.58 
St Ignace True Value 
Hardware December 2022 Statement $875.46 

Straits Building Center December 2022 Statement $7,650.47 

Team Life SIPD Defibrillator Pads $317.00 

UP North Flags & Poles CHALL-Flags $100.72 

West MI Baseball 
Franchising LBE-Dippin Dots $258.24 

Zoom Year Subscription Renewal $100.41 

  $55,414.99 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem  
         St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan and Fullerton. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT - NON-AGENDA ITEMS (3 min limit) 
Public comment was received regarding the City financials, the bus station contract, 
inappropriate plowing of snow into residential streets, Police certifications and the City 
residential GFL trash contract. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
Assistant Baar updated Council on upcoming committee meetings, the Zoning map update 
project and the Fire Agreement renewal. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Finance Committee – Council was given the minutes from January 19th Finance Committee 
meeting for review. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
Councilmember comments were received. 
 
ENTER CLOSED SESSION:  COUNCIL MAY ENTER CLOSED SESSION TO CONSULT 
WITH ITS ATTORNEY REGARDING PENDING LITIGATION PER MCL 15.268(e). 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Pelter, to enter into 
Closed Session at 8:47 p.m. per MCL 15.268(e).  Motion carried unanimously. 
 



Council returned to the open meeting at 9:24 p.m. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 
 
______________________________                          _________________________________ 
       William LaLonde, Mayor                                       Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 



 

City of St. Ignace, MI 

 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda Date:    Presenter:  

Department:    Darcy Long, City Manager:  _________________________  

 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL EFFECT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

396 N State Street 
St. Ignace, MI. 49781 

cityofstignace.com 

This form and any background material must be approved by the City Manager then delivered to the 
City Manager’s Office by 4:00 PM the Thursday prior to the Council Meeting.   



City of St. Ignace 

2023 POVERTY EXEMPTION POLICY & GUIDELINES 
 
The following policy and guidelines, adopted by the City Council, shall be followed by 
the City Board of Review when considering poverty exemptions according to section 
211.7u of the Michigan Compiled Laws (MCL). 
 
Application Guidelines: To be eligible for a Poverty Exemption; The applicant must: 
 

1. File Form 5737 Application for MCL 211.7u Poverty Exemption 
2. File Form 5739 Affirmation of Ownership and Occupancy to Remain Exempt by 

Reason of Poverty 
3. Own and occupy the property as a principal residence.  Provide federal and state 

income tax returns for the current or immediately preceding year, including any 
property tax credits, for all persons residing in the principal residence. 
(Disclosure of the income of an owner who is not residing in the principal 
residence is not required.)  Federal and state income tax returns are not required 
for a person residing in the principal residence if that person was not required to 
file a federal or state income tax return. Instead, Form 4988, Poverty Exemption 
Affidavit may be filed for all persons residing in the residence who were not 
required to file federal or state income tax returns in the current or immediately 
preceding year  

4. Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification, if requested 
5. Produce a deed, land contract or other evidence of ownership of the property, if 

requested. 
6. Meet the income guidelines of this policy 
7. Meet the asset level test of this policy 

 
 

Income Test 
 

• Total Annual Household Income shall not exceed the following amount applicable 
to the number of persons living in the household: 

 

Number of Persons Federal Poverty Income 
Level for 2023 

City Income Level for 
2023 (+20%) 

1 $13,590 $16,308 

2 $18,310 $21,972 

3 $23,030 $27,636 

4 $27,750 $33,300 

5 $32,470 $38,964 

6 $37,190 $44,628 

7 $41,910 $50,292 

8 $46,630 $55,956 

For each additional person $4,720 $5,664 

 



City of St. Ignace 

• Total Annual Household Income shall be based on Federal Poverty Income 
Guidelines and will be adjusted annually to agree to the federally established 
amount. 

 
Potential income and asset sources are (non-inclusive): 
 
Income from all sources    Interest and dividends 
Salaries & wages before deductions  Pensions 
Net receipts from self-employment  Supplemental Security Income 
Veteran payments     Net rental income 
Royalties      Scholarships & grants 
Unemployment compensation   Insurance 
Workers’ compensation    Retirement accounts 
Alimony      Child support 
General assistance     IRA/Keogh annuities 
Social Security     New or reverse mortgages 
Cash       Stocks & bonds 
Checking & savings accounts   Investments 
Money market accounts    Gifts 
Assets in trust accounts    Deferred compensation 
 
 
Asset Test 
 

1. Things of value that a person can own and are exempt from consideration in 
determining eligibility for a poverty exemption. 

a. Applicant’s principal residence 
b. One motor vehicle per working adult 
c. Essential household goods 
d. Personal assets of any nature with a total value up to $15,000.  

 
2. Things of value that the Board of Review can consider in determining what 

percent exemption to grant: 
a. Real estate other than the principal residence 
b. Personal property 
c. Motor vehicles in excess of one per working adult 
d. Recreational vehicles and equipment 
e. Certificate of deposits, savings accounts, checking accounts, stocks, 

bonds, life insurance, and retirement funds, etc. 
3. The Board of Review shall consider the value of the assets, or indebtedness 

otherwise owned by the applicant.  Assets (except those exempt from 
consideration as listed above), shall not exceed $15,000.   
 

 
 
 



City of St. Ignace 

Evaluation Procedures 
 
1. The Board of Review shall follow the above policy and guidelines when making 
poverty exemption decisions.  
 
2. The applicant should be prepared to answer questions regarding their financial 
affairs, health, status of people living in the household, and any other question relevant 
to the exemption request. 
 
3. All information is subject to verification. 
 
Granting full or partial poverty exemptions.  MCL 211.7u(5) states that if a person 
claiming poverty exemption meets all eligibility requirements, the Board of Review shall 
grant the poverty exemption in whole or in part as follows: 
 

a) A full exemption equal to a 100% reduction in taxable value for the year in 
which the exemption is granted: or 

b) A partial exemption equal to a 50% reduction in taxable value for the year in 
which the exemption is granted: or 

c) A partial exemption equal to a 25% reduction in taxable value for the year in 
which the exemption is granted. 

No other method of calculating taxable value may be utilized, except for those 
percentage reductions specifically authorized by statute 



 

 1 

CITY OF ST. IGNACE 

POLICE CHIEF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 6th day of February, 2023, by and between 

the City of St. Ignace, a Municipal Corporation of the State of Michigan, hereinafter referred to as 

“Employer”, and Kevin James, referred to as “Employee”. Both of whom understand as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, the Employer desires to employ Employee as the Chief of Police of the City 

of St. Ignace, as provided in the Job Description provided to Employee; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Employer to provide certain benefits, to establish certain 

conditions of employment, and to set working conditions of Employee; and 

 WHEREAS, the Employer desires to retain the services of Employee; and 

 WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept appointment and employment as the Employer’s 

Police Chief. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 

Employer and Employee agree as follows: 

 1. Duties.  The Employer agrees to employ Employee as its full-time Police Chief to 

perform all of the functions and duties specified in the City Charter and to perform whatever legally 

permissible and proper functions and duties as the Employer from time to time may assign.  

Employee shall, at all times, faithfully, industriously, and to the best of his ability, experience, and 

talents, perform all of the duties that may be required of and from him pursuant to the express and 

implicit terms of this Agreement and the direction of the Employer. Employee shall maintain 

regular office hours Monday through Friday and shall attend all regular and special City Council 

meetings and other City meetings as needed or as directed by the Employer.   

a. Direct Supervisor.  Employee’s immediate supervisor shall be the City 

Manager.  Employee acknowledges, understands, and agrees that the City 

Manager shall have the final authority and the power to direct, control or 

supervise the manner of Employee’s duties, consistent with the laws of the 

State of Michigan, the City Charter, and this Agreement.  

b. Working Hours.   

1. The work week of Employee shall be forty (40) hours in addition to 

any and all additional work time reasonably required to discharge 

the duties and responsibilities of the office of the Police Chief, 

including, but not limited to, any official meetings that are generally 

attended by the Police Chief.  Employee is exempt from receiving 

overtime pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act and shall not be 

entitled to overtime or compensatory time.   



 

 2 

2. It is recognized that, due to the small size of the St. Ignace Police 

Department, Employee may be occasionally required to cover for an 

officer who is out sick or on vacation.  It is further recognized that 

the Employee must also devote a great deal of time outside of his 

normal office hours in the performance of his duties. To maintain a 

reasonable work schedule, Employee shall be allowed to flex his 

work hours to adjust for time worked beyond his normal office 

hours. Employee shall be expected to flex his work hours at such 

times which he reasonably determines will least adversely impact 

Department operations. To account for flexed hours, the Employee 

shall track all hours worked, however, it is understood by the 

Employee that it is reasonable not to expect a one-for-one allowance 

due to the nature of a salaried position, and that this is not 

compensatory time owed to Employee. Employee will advise the 

City Manager when he is taking time off.  

 2. Compensation.  Beginning with the effective date of this contract, the Employer 

agrees to compensate Employee at a prorated annual salary of Sixty Thousand and No/100 Dollars 

($60,000.00), payable in equal, bi-weekly increments following the regular City payroll cycle. 

Effective January 1, 2024 the Employer agrees to increase the annual salary to Sixty-two Thousand 

and No/100 Dollars ($62,000.00).  

 3. Performance Review.  The City Manager shall meet with Employee annually to 

conduct an evaluation of Employee’s job performance, including an evaluation of Employee’s 

performance and/or completion of the goals and expectations previously established.  The format 

and the content of said performance evaluation shall be established by the City Manager, and shall 

be provided to Employee prior to the performance review.  The City Manager, may at his or her 

discretion, initiate performance evaluations at other times than those set forth herein. 

 4. Cellular Telephone, Vehicle, & Uniform.   

a.  The Employer agrees to provide Employee with a cellular/mobile telephone 

stipend in the amount of $50 per month.  Employee shall maintain his own 

cellular/mobile phone service for City related business and will be responsible for 

all equipment purchases, replacement fees, and monthly service charges.  As the 

Employer is providing the above-referenced stipend, Employee’s cellular telephone 

invoices and records, including information regarding telephone numbers called, 

calls received and text messages sent and received, may be subject to public 

dissemination pursuant to Michigan’s Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”).  

Therefore, Employee shall maintain all cellular/mobile telephone invoices and 

records in compliance with the applicable retention period for production in the 

event that they are requested pursuant to FOIA and/or in connection with discovery 

in the litigation process. 

b.  The Employee shall be provided with an Employer-issued and maintained 

patrol vehicle, which shall be used for daily City business. The Employee may 

utilize his patrol vehicle as a “take home” vehicle, provided that it is not subject to 



 

 3 

personal use. 

c.  Employee shall receive a uniform stipend in the amount of $1,000.00.  The 

Employer shall also issue Employee a side arm, and body armor/vest at no cost to 

Employee.   

 5. Professional Development. 

a. Professional development is understood to be a benefit to the Employer as 

well as Employee.  The Employer agrees that Employee shall be given 

reasonable opportunity to develop his skills and abilities.  The Employer 

hereby agrees to bear reasonable expenses for the registration, travel and 

expenses of Employee for professional meetings, official travel and 

attendance at institutes and seminars and such other regional, state, and local 

governmental groups and committees thereof on which Employee serves or 

of which Employee is a member.  Any such expenses must be submitted to 

the City Manager for approval prior to incurring the expense.  Any such 

expenses not provided to the City Manager for approval prior to incurring 

the expense will be denied and Employee shall be solely responsible for the 

expense. 

b. The Employer agrees to pay the reasonable dues and subscriptions of 

Employee for his continuation and full participation in national, state, and 

local associations and organizations necessary and desirable for his 

continued professional participation, growth, advancement and for the good 

of the Employer, including membership in one (1) local community service 

organization.  Employee must submit any such fees or dues required for 

participation in the above-referenced associations and organizations to the 

City Manager for approval prior to incurring any expense.  Any such 

expenses not provided to the City Manager for approval prior to incurring 

the expense will be denied and Employee shall be solely responsible for the 

expense. 

c. Expenditures on the professional development benefits referenced in 

subsections a. and b. above cannot exceed the annual budgeted 

appropriation(s) for such activities.  The City Manager shall have final 

discretion in determining the reasonableness of any professional 

development activity and for making budget appropriations and approving 

expenditures. 

 6. Employee Benefits. 

a. The Employee and his dependents shall be eligible for all health, dental, and 

vision insurance benefits for which other City employees are eligible, per 

Employer group health insurance plan, upon the first day of employment. 

Employees electing to receive medical coverage are required to pay a set 

contribution bi-weekly through payroll. Employees opting out of medical 



 

 4 

coverage shall receive an in-lieu-of payment in conjunction with their 

regular payroll cycle.  

b. Employee shall be entitled to paid sick time credited at a rate of one (1) sick 

day per month, not to exceed twelve (12) per calendar year, with one 

hundred five (105) days maximum accumulation. A day is defined as eight 

(8) hours. All unused paid sick time will be paid upon severance of 

Employment with the Employer at fifty (50) percent.  

c. Employee shall accrue ten (10) paid vacation days, of eight (8) hours each, 

on an annual basis. Each subsequent year of the contract, Employee will 

receive one additional day of vacation. Vacation accumulation is capped at 

200 hours (25 days). All unused vacation time will be paid upon severance 

of Employment with the Employer at a prevailing rate.  

d. Employee shall receive one (1) eight (8) hour personal day per calendar 

year. Personal leave is non-accumulative and lost if not used within the 

calendar year. Employee’s birthday is also granted as a personal day to be 

used within a reasonable time of the actual birthday.  

e. Employer recognizes ten (10) paid holidays: New Year’s Day, Good Friday, 

Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day 

after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, and New Year’s Eve. 

Should a holiday fall on a regularly scheduled day off, the nearest regularly 

scheduled work day shall be considered the holiday. Employee agrees that 

he may be required to work on a holiday if operational needs demand it. 

e. In the event that a death occurs to a member of Employee’s immediate 

family, he shall be entitled to take up to three (3) consecutive, eight (8) hour 

days of paid leave to attend the funeral. “Immediate family” shall mean 

Employee’s current spouse, child, father, mother, sister, brother, father-in-

law, mother-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild.  

f. The Employer shall provide Life and Long-term Disability insurance 

coverage to Employee in the eligible amount and shall pay the premium on 

this policy. 

 7.  Death or Incapacitation During Term of Employment. If the Employee dies, the 

Employer shall pay to his estate all the compensation which would otherwise be payable to the 

Employee up to the date of his death. If the Employee becomes medically incapacitated, the 

Employer shall pay to the Employee all compensation owed to the Employee. Agreement shall 

terminate as of said date of death or incapacitation. As used herein, compensation means all wages 

owed to the Employee up to the date of death and all unused vacation and sick time up to the date 

of death.  

8.  Retirement. Employer agrees to execute all necessary agreements provided by 

MERS and, in addition to the base salary paid by the Employer to the Employee, Employer agrees 

to pay the maximum allowable amount for MERS C1 Benefit Plan Division 20, into MERS on 



 

 5 

Employee’s behalf, and to transfer ownership to succeeding employers upon Employee’s 

resignation or discharge, if that subsequent employer participates in a MERS pension. Employee 

may choose to participate in available 457 plan(s).  

9. No Reduction of Benefits. Employer shall not at any time during the term of this 

agreement reduce the salary, compensation, or other financial benefits of the Employee, except to 

the degree of such a reduction across-the-board for all employees of the Employer. 

10.  Duration of Agreement.  The terms and conditions contained in this Agreement 

will begin on Insert Date, 2023 and will expire on December 31, 2024.  The duration of this 

Agreement shall apply only to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and Employee 

shall always be an at-will employee of the Employer. If the Employer elects not to renew or 

renegotiate this Agreement for an additional term at the time of its expiration, the City Manager 

shall notify Employee of this intention not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the 

Agreement or by December 1 of each year.   

a.  Probationary Period. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or 

otherwise interfere with the right of Employer to terminate the services of 

Employee at any time, subject to the provisions set forth in this Agreement. 

Provided, however, the first six (6) months of the term of this Agreement 

shall be considered probationary, during which either party may terminate 

the Agreement by providing written notice thereof not less than five (5) days 

before the termination.  

b. Termination.  If the City Manager, subject to the approval of City Council, 

determines that it is not in the Employer’s best interest to continue 

Employee’s employment, the City Manager shall notify Employee of this 

intention by providing Employe thirty (30) days written notice. In the event 

Employee is terminated by Employer, without cause, before expiration of 

the aforesaid term of employment and during such unexpired time that 

Employee is willing and able to perform his duties under this agreement, 

then in that event, Employer agrees to pay Employee a lump sum cash 

payment equal to two (2) months’ aggregate salary. However, Employee 

shall not be entitled to severance pay if the Employer terminates his 

employment because of Employee’s conviction for embezzlement of City 

funds; violation of the City’s ordinances, resolutions or state law, relative 

to Employee’s duties and responsibilities as Police Chief, or other law 

regarding public officers; a violation of this Agreement; conviction of a 

felony, misdemeanor resulting in a term of incarceration or any crime 

involving moral turpitude; intentional insubordination regarding a directive 

legally approved by Employer; or other behavior that demonstrates a 

deliberate violation or disregard of Employee’s duties and obligations to the 

City’s interests or otherwise deviates from a standard of behavior which an 

Employer can reasonably expect of a public officer, then in that event, 

Employer shall have no obligation to pay the aggregate severance sum 

designated in this paragraph.  



 

 6 

c. Resignation.  Employee may voluntarily resign from his employment at 

any time and for any reason.  Employee shall notify the Employer of this 

intention by providing the City Manager thirty (30) days’ written notice. In 

the event Employee voluntarily resigns from his employment, the Employer 

shall have no obligation to pay the aforementioned severance.  

d.  Suspension.  Employer may suspend the Employee, with or without full 

pay and benefits, at any time during the term of this agreement, if the City 

Manager, subject to the approval of the City Council, determines that it is 

in the City’s best interest to do so.  

11. Residence.  The Employee shall maintain his residence within a reasonable 

proximity of the City’s nearest boundary during his employment with Employer. 

12. Severability of Invalid Provision.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be 

deemed severable; the invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall not affect the validity and enforceability of other provisions.  This Agreement 

shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provisions were omitted. 

 13. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the full and complete Agreement 

between the parties on the subject matters contained herein, and no amendment of this Agreement 

will be effective unless agreed to in writing by the parties hereto.  Any and all prior agreements or 

understandings between the parties are null and void as of the date of execution of this Agreement. 

14. Interpretation.  For purposes of interpretation of this Agreement, neither the 

Employer nor Employee shall be deemed to have been the drafter of this Agreement.  

 15. Construction.  This Agreement has been prepared and negotiations have occurred 

in connection with said preparation pursuant to the joint efforts of the parties hereto.  This 

Agreement therefore shall not be construed against any party to this Agreement. 

 16. Modification.  This Agreement shall not be modified, altered, or amended except 

through a written amendment signed by the City Council and Employee. 

 17. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is not intended to confer upon any 

person or entity, other than the parties hereto, any rights or remedies of any kind or nature 

whatsoever. 

18. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts each of 

which shall be deemed one and the same Agreement.  It shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the parties to it and their respective successors and assigns. 

19.  Bonding. Employer shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required 

of the Employee under law or ordinance.  

20. Indemnification.  The Employer will defend, save harmless, and indemnify 

Employee against any tort, professional liability claims or demand, or other legal action, whether 

groundless or otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of 



 

 7 

his duties as Police Chief.  Indemnification shall extend beyond the termination or expiration of 

this Agreement, to provide full and complete protection of Employee by the Employer, as 

described herein, for any acts undertaken or committed in his capacity as Police Chief, regardless 

of whether the notice or filing of a lawsuit for such tort, claim, demand, or other legal action occurs 

during or following his employment or this termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

21. Captions and Bylines.  The captions and bylines used in this Agreement are for 

the convenience of reference only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope of intent of 

any provision of this Agreement. 

22. Notice.  Unless otherwise provided herein, any notice, communication, request, 

reply or advice (herein severally and collectively, for convenience, called “Notice”) herein 

provided or permitted to be given, made or accepted by any party to any other party must be in 

writing and may be given or be served by depositing the same in the United States mail postpaid 

and registered or certified and addressed to the party to be notified, with return receipt requested, 

or by delivering the same to an officer of such party, or by overnight courier (i.e., Federal 

Express/UPS) when appropriate, addressed to the party to be notified.  Notice deposited in the mail 

in the manner described above shall be conclusively deemed to be effective, unless otherwise 

stated herein, from and after the expiration of three (3) days after it is so deposited.  Notice given 

in any other manner shall be effective only if and when received by the party to be notified.  For 

the purposes of notice, the addresses of the parties shall, until changed as hereinafter provided, be 

as follows: 

Employer: City of St. Ignace, 396 N. State Street, St. Ignace, MI 49781 

Employee: Kevin James, Insert Address 

 23. Certification of Authority to Sign Agreement.  The persons signing on behalf of 

the City of St. Ignace certify by their signatures that they are authorized to sign this Agreement on 

behalf of the City of St. Ignace and that this Agreement has been authorized by the City Council. 

24.  Contingency. This Agreement is contingent upon Employee being certified as a 

full-time Michigan police officer through the Michigan Commission on Law Enforcement 

Standards (MCOLES) by April 1, 2023. Employee is responsible for all related costs. In the event 

Employee is not MCOLES certified by this date, this Agreement shall have no force of effect and 

Employee shall not be entitled to any employment, compensation, or benefits herein stated. 

Employer may conduct a background check, and Employee agrees to cooperate fully in the 

procedure and understands that this offer is subject to Employer approving the outcome of said 

background check.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Council has caused this Agreement to be signed and 

executed on its behalf by the City Mayor, and Employee has signed and executed this Agreement, 

both in duplicate, this  6th day of February, 2023. 

 

 

 



 

 8 

By:          

  William LaLonde, Mayor of the City of St. Ignace 

 

 

 By: _____________________________________________ 

   , City Manager of the City of St. Ignace 

 

 

By:           

Kevin James, Chief of Police of the City of St. Ignace 



 

City of St. Ignace, MI 

 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda Date:    Presenter:  

Department:    Darcy Long, City Manager:  _________________________  

 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL EFFECT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

396 N State Street 
St. Ignace, MI. 49781 

cityofstignace.com 

This form and any background material must be approved by the City Manager then delivered to the 
City Manager’s Office by 4:00 PM the Thursday prior to the Council Meeting.   



 

City of St. Ignace 
Andrea lnsley, City Clerk/Treasurer 

396 N State St 
St. Ignace MI 49781 

ainsley@cityofstiqnace.com 
(906)643-8545 Fax (906)643-9393 

 

 
MARINA SUPPORT AGREEMENT 

 

Agreement between the City of St. Ignace, a home rule City, and Tim Matelski, 
of St. Ignace, Michigan, hereinafter called “Marina Support”. 

 
Whereas, the City of St. Ignace agrees to pay an hourly wage of $25 to Tim 

Matelski for Marina Support; and 

 
Whereas, the City of St. Ignace will continue to pay set wage until set goals are 

satisfied. 
 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The consideration for this agreement is acknowledged to be the mutual promise 
and duties set forth herein. 

 

2. Term: This contract shall begin immediately and continue for ninety (90) days. 

 
 
FOR THE CITY OF ST. IGNACE  FOR THE INTERIM-MARINA SUPPORT 
 
 
By:________________________  By:__________________________________ 
 
Its:________________________  Its:__________________________________ 
 
Date:______________________  Date:________________________________ 
 



 

City of St. Ignace, MI 

 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda Date:    Presenter:  

Department:    Darcy Long, City Manager:  _________________________  

 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL EFFECT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

396 N State Street 
St. Ignace, MI. 49781 

cityofstignace.com 

This form and any background material must be approved by the City Manager then delivered to the 
City Manager’s Office by 4:00 PM the Thursday prior to the Council Meeting.   



 CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
 RESOLUTION 23-06  

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE 2023 JEEP THE MAC 
 

The following Resolution was offered for adoption by , supported by  : 
 

WHEREAS: The St. Ignace Visitors Bureau requests permission to conduct Jeep the 
Mac; and 

 

WHEREAS: This event requires the usage of I-75NB, I-75BL, and the St. Ignace Little 
Bear East Arena parking lot and overflow lot; and  

 
WHEREAS: This event requires a parade escort from City of St. Ignace Police; and 
 

WHEREAS: Chapter 22 of the City of St. Ignace Code, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, 
requires certain criteria be met for the event to be held; and 

 

WHEREAS:  This event will be required to follow all COVID Federal, State, and Local 
regulations in place at that time to qualify for Special Event status; and 

 

WHEREAS:  It is understood that there may be fees for certain services if provided by 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS: The St. Ignace City Council has determined that the St. Ignace Visitors 

Bureau does meet the criteria established in the various sections of 
Chapter 22; now therefore  

 

BE IT RESOLVED:  The St. Ignace City Council does approve Special Events status for Jeep 
the Mac on May 12-14, 2023; now further 

 
BE IT RESOLVED: The St. Ignace City Council does approve usage of I-75NB, I-75BL, and 

the St. Ignace Little Bear East Arena parking lot and overflow lot for this 
event, and a parade escort from City of St. Ignace Police.   

 

Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:   
No:   
Absent:   
Resolution declared  
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the St. Ignace City 
Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, February 6, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
           
____________________________________ 

sb            Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 























July 5. 2022 
 

Purpose statement: 

The St. Ignace Peddlers and Solicitors Ordinance is intended to protect the health, safety, and welfare of 

St. Ignace residents and businesses by licensing transient vendors, controlling the location of operation 

of such vendors, and by limiting the number allowed to operate within the city. Special Events 

Organizers are allowed to contract with and invite transient vendors as part of an approved Special 

Event, providing that Special Event Vendors comply with all applicable local, state, and federal rules and 

regulations. It is the City of St. Ignace’s intent to allow events and vending such that the vitality of 

downtown St. Ignace improves, remains healthy, and serves to benefit the community. 

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 

Sec. 22-1. Definitions 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to 

them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Helper means any person who engages in the business of peddler by accompanying another peddler as a 

helper or assistant. If two or more persons are associated in the business of peddler but go about their 

business separately from place to place within the city, they shall each be deemed an independent 

peddler for purposes of this chapter. 

Peddler, also known as a “transient trader”, means any person who solicits, sells, or peddles from a 

temporary sales structure, or who travels by foot, wagon, vehicle, or any other type of conveyance, from 

place to place, from street to street, or from person to person, carrying, conveying, or transporting 

goods or services, wares, merchandise, meats, fish, fruits, vegetables or foodstuff, offering and exposing 

the same for sale, or making sales or delivering articles to customers; or who, without going from place 

to place, sells or offers the same for sale from a wagon, vehicle, railroad car, or other conveyance; or 

who solicits orders and as a separate transaction makes deliveries to purchasers, or causes such 

deliveries to be made at a future time.  

Special Event means any activity conducted upon or involving the use of City-owned streets, alleys, 

parking lots, parks, facilities, sidewalks, sports fields, and non-motorized trails, which are different from 

or greater than the usual routine use by the general public. These activities include but are not limited 

to parades, musical performance entertainment, public shows, exhibitions, arts and craft shows, 

festivals, walk and run events, sporting events and events where alcoholic beverages are being sold or 

host served. 

Temporary Sales Structure means anything, for the use of vending, constructed or erected requiring 

location on the ground which is not permanently affixed or attached to a foundation or not designed to 

be permanently located in the place where it is located (e.g., temporary sheds, containers, semi-trailers, 

tents, trucks or other enclosures for persons or goods which are movable). 

Vendor, any person who sells from a temporary sales structure during a special event. 

Sec. 22-2. Exemptions. 

a. It is the intent of this chapter that the following persons shall not be deemed peddlers for 

purposes of this chapter, and shall not be subject to regulations hereunder: 



July 5. 2022 
 

1. Any person working as a route salesman, on a fixed route with regular periodic 

deliveries or visits, and who does not call on persons or places not already 

established as customers. 

2. Any person engaged exclusively in wholesale sales to retail merchants.  

3. Any person engaged in peddling on behalf of a school or recognized charitable or 

religious organization; said organization to produce evidence of nonprofit status 

through a federal nonprofit Internal Revenue Service identification number or any 

other verifiable proof of nonprofit status, and who is receiving no financial or 

material compensation for such work. 

b. However, the city clerk shall, with the cooperation of the exempted person, issue a license and 

badge to such person without charge for a period not to extend beyond December 31 of the 

year in which they are issued. 

Sec. 22-3. Loud noises and speaking devices. 

No peddler, nor any person in his behalf, shall shout, make any cryout, blow a horn, ring a bell or use 

any sound device, including any loud-speaking radio or sound amplifying system upon any of the streets, 

alley, parks or other public places of said city or upon any private premises in the city where sound of 

sufficient volume is emitted or produced therefrom to be capable of being plainly heard upon the 

streets, avenue, alleys, parks, or other public places, for the purpose of attracting attention to any 

goods, wares or merchandise which such licensee proposes to sell.   

Sec. 22-4. Use of Streets 

(a) Special events organizations may obtain use of public property by approval of the city council 

and other authorizing agencies during the term of the event. 

Sec. 22-5. Conduct.  

No person engaged in the business of peddling shall conduct himself toward the public or any individual 

person in such a manner as to be offensive, disorderly or rude. No person engaged in the business of 

peddling shall enter or remain on any private premises, contrary to the request of the owner or 

occupant thereof.  

Sec. 22-6. Hours of Operation 

Peddlers in the city shall limit their business operations to the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m. All 

peddlers must adhere to the city’s noise ordinance, Chapter 12 Article 2, limiting noise emissions to 72 

decibels between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., including noise from generators.  

Sec. 22-7. Duty of police to enforce. 

It shall be the duty of any police officer of the city to require any person seen peddling, and who is not 

known by such officer to be duly licensed, to produce his peddler’s license, and to enforce the provisions 

of this chapter against any person found to be violating the same.  

Sec. 22-8. Records. 

The chief of police shall report to the city clerk all convictions for violation of this chapter and the city 

clerk shall maintain a record for each license issued and record the reports of violations therein. 



July 5. 2022 
 

Sec. 22-9. Violation and penalty.  

Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a municipal civil infraction. 

 

ARTICLE II. LICENSE 

Sec. 22-31. License required. 

(a) Generally. It shall be the unlawful for any person to engage in the business of peddler (vendor), as an 

independent peddler or helper as defined in section 22-1, without first obtaining a license/permit as 

provided herein for the period during which the vendor plans to conduct business. No such license shall 

be issued or become effective until seven business days (excluding Sundays and holidays) have elapsed 

from time of application therefor. 

(b) Areas and Events allowed: 

1. Mobile Food Vending: 

(i) Public property. Mobile food vending shall only be allowed on public property when part of an 

approved Special Event. All mobile food vendors must submit a site plan for review and approval. 

Mobile Food Trucks and Vendors must not block public or private driveways, must not block public 

street or sidewalks, must not block access to public drains and/or utilities. Any vehicle/vendor found 

blocking such structures or facilities will be ordered to move or leave. 

Outside of Special Events, Mobile food vending in the CBD and GBD Districts shall be limited to the time 

between May 1 and October 31.  

(ii) Private property. Mobile food vending on private property shall be allowed in all non-residential 

districts and must include a parking plan review. Outside of Special Events, the number of Mobile Food 

and/or Temporary Food vendors on a parcel of private property in the Central Business District or the 

General Business District is limited to no more than one unit on any single day, unless a food court is 

permitted pursuant to Sec. 22-31 (b)(3) of this ordinance.   

Outside of Special Events, Mobile Food Vending on private property within the CBD and GBD is limited 

to the time between May 1 and October 31. 

(iii) Special Events. 

Special Event organizers may submit an event site plan that shows the location of mobile food vendors, 

and Special Event Organizers may apply for vendor permits on behalf of mobile vendors contracted for 

or invited to an event by the Special Event Organizer. An application submitted by a Special Event 

Organizer for a blanket permit must contain assurances from the Event Organizer that all vendors can 

and will comply with all applicable local, state, and federal rules and regulations. A blanket permit is only 

good for the duration of the Special Event. Special Event Organizers must agree to advise the City of St. 

Ignace of any vendors that would not be covered by the Organizers blanket permit request. 

Mobile food vending as part of a Special Event is allowed year-round. 



July 5. 2022 
 

(iv) In a residential district, mobile food vending and catering on private property shall only be allowed 

as part of a private event and shall only serve food to event attendees and not the general public. 

Mobile food vending on private residential property shall not be allowed to utilize public property 

including, but not limited to, sidewalks, streets, and rights-of-way. The outdoor preparation and service 

of food by a mobile food vendor or caterer in residential areas shall be limited to the hours between 10 

A.M. to 10 P.M., standard or daylight savings time. Mobile food vendors and caterers attending to a 

private party in a residential area are not required to obtain operating permits from the City of St. 

Ignace. 

 

2. Mobile non-food vending: 

(i) Public Property. Non-food mobile vending shall only be allowed on public property when part of an 

approved Special Event. All mobile vendors must submit a site plan for review and approval. Mobile 

non-food Vendors must not block public or private driveways, must not block public street or sidewalks, 

must not block access to public drains and/or utilities. Any vehicle/vendor found blocking such 

structures or facilities will be ordered to move or leave. 

(ii) Private Property. Non-food mobile vending is allowed on private property in all non-residential 

districts when allowed by the property owner and permitted by City of St. Ignace. Outside of Special 

Events, Non-food mobile vending in the CBD and GBD is limited to one unit per property description. 

(iii) Special Events 

Special Event organizers may submit an event site plan that shows the location of mobile vendors, and 

Special Event Organizers may apply for vendor permits on behalf of mobile vendors contracted for or 

invited to an event by the Special Event Organizer. An application submitted by a Special Event 

Organizer for a blanket permit must contain assurances from the Event Organizer that all vendors can 

and will comply with all applicable local, state, and federal rules and regulations. A blanket permit is only 

good for the duration of the Special Event. Special Event Organizers must agree to advise the City of St. 

Ignace of any vendors that would not be covered by the Organizers blanket permit request. 

 

3. Food Courts 

An owner of private property in the CBD or the GBD may apply for permission to create a Food Court on 

the owner’s premises. Such Food Courts, if permitted can consist of no more than six (6) individual 

mobile food vending units based within the owner’s property. Applications for a Food Court must be 

reviewed by the St. Ignace Downtown Development Authority (D.D.A.) and must be approved by the St. 

Ignace City Council. A proposed Food Court must be found, by the St. Ignace D.D.A., to be in the best 

interests of businesses and activities in the CBD and GBD. The City Council of St. Ignace may only act on 

a Food Court application recommended for approval by the St. Ignace D.D.A. An application for a Food 

Court must include a site plan and description of days and times of operation of the Food Court. 

 

4. Farmer’s Markets: 



July 5. 2022 
 

Farmer’s Markets on Public Property are allowed in the CBD and/or GBD when sponsored and 

conducted by a Special Event Organizer approved by the City of St. Ignace City Council. Farmer’s Markets 

on Private Property are allowed in the CBD and/or GBD when approved by City Administration. The 

Event Organizer must annually request approval for the Farmer’s Market. The Farmer’s Market Event 

Organizer must submit a site plan to the City of St. Ignace describing the area proposed for the Market 

along with an estimate of the approximate number of vendors to be located within the Market. Vendors 

in an approved Farmer’s Market are not required to obtain City of St. Ignace permits under the Peddler’s 

Ordinance when the merchandise being sold is limited to farm-produced products and/or merchandise 

such as handicraft and artwork created by the vendor. The Market Event Organizer is responsible for 

assuring that vendors only market farm produced products, and handicraft and artwork produced by the 

individual vendors. The Event Organizer is responsible for annually notifying the Michigan Department 

of Agriculture and Rural Development of the dates for operation of the Market. 

 

5. Flea Markets: 

Flea Markets (vendors selling used merchandise, collectible items, antiques, and vendor produced 

crafts) on Public Property are allowed in the CBD and/or GBD when sponsored and conducted by a 

Special Event Organizer approved by the City of St. Ignace City Council. Flea Markets on Private Property 

are allowed in the CBD and/or GBD when approved by City Administration. The Event Organizer must 

annually request approval for the Flea Market. The Flea Market Event Organizer must submit a site plan 

to the City of St. Ignace describing the area proposed for the Market along with an estimate of the 

approximate number of vendors to be located within the Market. Vendors in an approved Flea Market 

are not required to obtain City of St. Ignace permits under the Peddler’s Ordinance when the 

merchandise being sold is limited to farm-produced products, baked goods, and/or merchandise such as 

handicraft and artwork created by the vendor, the sale of used items, collectible items, and antiques. 

The Market Event Organizer is responsible for assuring that vendors only market approved products. 

The Event Organizer is responsible for annually notifying the Michigan Department of Agriculture and 

Rural Development of the dates for operation of the Market, if the Market will contain vendors selling 

farm-produced products and/or baked goods. 

 

6. Garage and Estate Sales on Private Residential Property: 

Garage and Estate Sales on private property in residential areas do not require operating permits. The 

display and sale of merchandise from a garage or estate sale must limited to private property, may not 

occupy public sidewalks or rights-of-way. Garage and Estate Sales are limited to a three (3) day duration. 

Any residential property is limited to no more than four (4) sale events per calendar year. 

 

Sec. 22-32. Special events and special events organization.  

a) Special events organizations are those groups or organizations that are determined by 

resolution of the city council to be organized as such. The minimum criteria that the 



July 5. 2022 
 

special events organization shall meet prior to the approving resolution of the city 

council are: 

(1) The city council shall determine that the special event is in the public 

interest; 

(2) The city council shall determine that the proposed vending during the 

special event is in the public interest; 

(3) The special event organization may be a profit or nonprofit organization 

which the city council recognizes as a legal entity; 

(4) The city council shall determine that the special event shall be organized 

as such for convenience and be necessary for the betterment of the 

general public; 

(5) Any other criteria that the city council may wish to establish. 

b) Special event organizations are required to complete and submit and application to the 

city at least 30 days before the start of the special event.  

c) The special event organization must provide proof of general liability insurance (amount 

to be determined by city’s insurance agent) naming City of St. Ignace as additional 

insured. 

d) The special event organization is required to reimburse all city expenses incurred as a 

result of the event. Reimbursements collected by the city shall be used to defray the 

cost of the special event. 

e) Vendors who will be selling food, beverages, meats, fruits, vegetables and foodstuff are 

required to meet all local health department regulations. 

Sec. 22-35. Application.  

No permit will be issued unless through application on a form provided by the city. 

Sec. 22-37. Fees.  

The fees for peddler’s licenses as required herein shall be as currently established or as hereafter 

adopted by resolution of the city council from time to time.  

Sec. 22-39. Exhibition of license. 

It shall be the duty of every person actively engaged in the business of peddler to carry his license on his 

person at all times, and to exhibit his license at the request of any citizen, and to allow such citizen a 

reasonable period of time in which to inspect such license. 

Sec. 22-40. Nontransferability.  

No license issued under the provisions of this chapter shall be used at any time by any person or 

business other than the person or business to whom it was issued.  

Sec. 22-41. Suspension and revocation of licenses.  

Any license granted under the terms of this chapter may be suspended by the chief of police, or revoked 

by the city council, for any of the following causes: 

(1) Fraud, misrepresentation, or false statement contained in the application for license; 



July 5. 2022 
 

(2) Fraud, misrepresentation, or false statement made in the course of carrying on his business 

as peddler; 

(3) Any violation of this chapter; 

(4) Conviction of any crime or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude; 

(5) Conducting the business of peddling in an unlawful manner or in such a manner as to 

constitute a breach of the peace or to constitute a menace to the health, safety, or general 

welfare of the public. 

Sec. 22-42. Appeal. 

Any person aggrieved by the action of the chief of police or the city clerk in the denial of an application 

for license as provided in section 22-36, or in the decision with reference to the suspension or 

revocation of a license as provided in section 22-41, shall have the right to appeal to the city council. 

Such appeal shall be taken by filing with the council, within 14 days after notice of the action 

complained of has been mailed to such person’s last known address, a written statement setting forth 

fully the grounds for the appeal. The council shall set a time and place for a hearing on such appeal and 

ten days’ notice of such hearing shall be given to the appellant. The decision and order of the council on 

such appeal shall be final and conclusive.  

Sec. 22-43. Expiration of license. 

All annual licenses issued under the provisions of this chapter shall expire on December 31 in the year in 

which issued. Licenses other than annual licenses shall expire on the date specified in the license.  

Sec. 22-44. Severability. 

If any section, clause, or provision of this Ordinance is declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by 

a court of competent jurisdiction, said declaration shall not affect the remainder of the Ordinance, 

which shall be given effect without the invalid portion or application. 

 



1 

 

City of St. Ignace 
 
396 N State Street, St. Ignace, Michigan 49781 
 
(906) 643-9671 • Fax (906) 643-9393 • www.cityofstignace.com 

MOBILE FOOD VENDING APPLICATION             
The City of St. Ignace Code of Ordinances requires that all mobile food vendors obtain a City license to operate 
on both private and public lands. Vending on City property is only permitted when part of an approved Special 
Event. After completing the information below, please return this form to: City Manager, City of St. Ignace, 396 N. 
State Street, St. Ignace, MI 49781 

  Applicant Information 
 
 
Full Name:    Date:  
 Last First M.I.   
 

Address:   
 Street Address Apartment/Unit # 
 

    

 City State ZIP Code 
 

Phone:  Email  
 

Vending Unit Information 
 
 
Make & Model:  Name of Vending Unit:  
 

Year:   Vehicle Identification Number (VIN):  
 

License Plate:  Size of Unit:   
 
Proposed hours of operation 
(must be between 7:00am 
and 2:00am):  
 
Intended areas of operation 
(include permission from 
private property owner(s)):  
 
Plans for electrical 
access & 
wastewater/trash 
disposal 
(waste/wastewater
/grease shall not 
be disposed of in 
City receptacles): 

 
 
 

 
  



2 

Parking Plan Review 

Any mobile vending unit that will be parked on private property must include the following information. Parking 
requirements of Chapter 38, Article III “Parking and Loading Areas” of the Zoning Ordinance must be met for a 
mobile vending unit to be located on a site.  

The following information must be provided on a dimensioned illustration that is included with this application for 
the request to be processed. Each item included shall either be checked or NA if not applicable. 

 

A scaled illustration that includes all property line dimensions for the lot on which you are placing the 
mobile vending unit. The property line is where the public right-of-way or neighbor’s property begins 
(not the curb)   

 
Location of the mobile vending unit on the property in relation to existing buildings. Building entrances 
shall be identified.   

 All drives, parking areas, loading areas, fire lanes, and trash enclosures.   

 Sidewalks and/or how pedestrians are to safely access the mobile vending unit.   

General Application Requirements 

  Please confirm that the following items have been included with your application   

 
 

If vending on City property, Certificate of General Liability Insurance required (minimum $1 Million per 
occurrence) with City named as additional insured   

 If vending on City property, written permission from a Special Event Organizer and their contact 
information   

 If vending on private property, written permission from the property owner and their contact information   

 
Copy of Health Department License or Application for Temporary Food Permit (provide permit once issued)   

 
Copy of State issued photo ID for owner/applicant   

 
Copy of Michigan Sales Tax License   

 
Photograph of the mobile food vending unit   

 
$300.00 application fee   

 

Disclaimer and Signature 

As the applicant for a mobile food vending license, I hereby agree to comply with all requirements of the St. Ignace 
Code of Ordinances and County and State regulations. I confirm that all information that I have provided in this 
application is accurate to the best of my knowledge. I further authorize the City staff to enter the site for which 
application is made. I understand this license is personal and non-transferable. I also understand this license may be 
revoked by the City Manager. 

I acknowledge that the City may be required from time to time to release records in its possession. I hereby give 
permission to the City to release any records or materials received by the City from myself as it may be requested to do 
so as permitted by the Freedom of Information Act, MCL 15.231 et seq. 

I also agree to INDEMNIFY AND HOLD the City of St. Ignace HARMLESS from any and all claims, actions, suits, 
procedures, costs, expenses, damages and liabilities, including attorney's fees, brought as a result of my mobile food 
vending and any associated travel and to reimburse them for any such expenses incurred. I have read, understand and 
agree. 

Applicant:  Date:  
 
Property 
Owner (if 
different):  Date:  
 

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/indemnification-and-hold-harmless


1 

 

City of St. Ignace 
 
396 N State Street, St. Ignace, Michigan 49781 
 
(906) 643-9671 • Fax (906) 643-9393 • www.cityofstignace.com 

MOBILE VENDING APPLICATION                    
The City of St. Ignace Code of Ordinances requires that all mobile vendors obtain a City license to operate on 
both private and public lands. Vending on City property is only permitted when part of an approved Special Event. 
After completing the information below, please return this form to: City Manager, City of St. Ignace, 396 N. State 
Street, St. Ignace, MI 49781 

  Applicant Information 
 
 
Full Name:    Date:  
 Last First M.I.   
 

Address:   
 Street Address Apartment/Unit # 
 

    

 City State ZIP Code 
 

Phone:  Email  
 

Vending Unit Information 
 
 
Make & Model:  Name of Vending Unit:  
 

Year:   Vehicle Identification Number (VIN):  
 

License Plate:  Size of Unit:   
 
Proposed hours of operation 
(must be between 7:00am 
and 2:00am):  
 
Intended areas of operation 
(include permission from 
private property owner(s)):  
 
 
 
Plans for electrical 
access & waste 
disposal (waste 
shall not be 
disposed of in City 
receptacles): 

 
 
 

 
  



2 

General Application Requirements 

  Please confirm that the following items have been included with your application   

 
 

If vending on City property, Certificate of General Liability Insurance required (minimum $1 Million per 
occurrence) with City named as additional insured   

 If vending on City property, written permission from a Special Event Organizer and their contact 
information   

 If vending on private property, written permission from the property owner and their contact information   

 
Copy of any required Local/County/State permits (if applicable)    

 
Copy of State issued photo ID for owner/applicant   

 
Copy of Michigan Sales Tax License   

 
Photograph of the mobile vending unit   

 
$200.00 application fee   

 

Disclaimer and Signature 

As the applicant for a mobile vending license, I hereby agree to comply with all requirements of the St. Ignace Code of 
Ordinances and County and State regulations. I confirm that all information that I have provided in this application is 
accurate to the best of my knowledge. I further authorize the City staff to enter the site for which application is made. I 
understand this license is personal and non-transferable. I also understand this license may be revoked by the City 
Manager. 

I acknowledge that the City may be required from time to time to release records in its possession. I hereby give 
permission to the City to release any records or materials received by the City from myself as it may be requested to do 
so as permitted by the Freedom of Information Act, MCL 15.231 et seq. 

I also agree to INDEMNIFY AND HOLD the City of St. Ignace HARMLESS from any and all claims, actions, suits, 
procedures, costs, expenses, damages and liabilities, including attorney's fees, brought as a result of my mobile 
vending and any associated travel and to reimburse them for any such expenses incurred. I have read, understand and 
agree. 

 
 
Applicant:  Date:  
 
 
 
Property 
Owner (if 
different):  Date:  
 

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/indemnification-and-hold-harmless


 CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
 RESOLUTION 23-07  

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE 2023 ARTS DOCKSIDE 
 

The following Resolution was offered for adoption by , supported by  : 
 

 

WHEREAS: The St. Ignace Business Association and the Arts Dockside Committee 
request permission to sponsor and conduct the “Arts Dockside 2023”; and 

 

WHEREAS: This event requires the usage of the City Marina parking lot and lawns and 
public streets; and  

 

WHEREAS: Chapter 22 of the City of St. Ignace Code, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, 
requires certain criteria be met for the event to be held; and 

 

WHEREAS:  This event will be required to follow all COVID Federal, State, and Local 
regulations in place at that time to qualify for Special Event status; and 

 

WHEREAS:  It is understood that there may be fees for certain services if provided by 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS: The St. Ignace City Council has determined that the St. Ignace Business 

Association does meet the criteria established in the various sections of 
Chapter 22; now therefore  

 

BE IT RESOLVED:  The St. Ignace City Council does approve Special Events status for Arts 
Dockside on September 1-3, 2023; now further 

 
BE IT RESOLVED: The St. Ignace City Council does approve usage of the City Marina area 

and the easterly northbound lane of South State Street, between McCann 
Street on the South and Truckey Street on the North for this event on 
Friday, September 1, 2023 through Sunday, September 3, 2023.   

 

Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:   
No:   
Absent:   
Resolution declared  
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the St. Ignace City 
Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, February 6, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
           
____________________________________ 

sb            Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 



















Chambers St. (Spring to McCann)

Major



Major



Local



Major



Major



Local



Local



Major



 CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
 RESOLUTION 23-08  

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE BALLOT PROPOSAL TO RENEW MILLAGE FOR STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION 

 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of St. Ignace, County of Mackinac, Michigan (the 
“City”), held on Monday, February 6, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., prevailing Eastern Time. 
 
PRESENT: 
 
ABSENT:   
 
 

The following preamble and resolution were offered for adoption by , supported by  : 
 

 

WHEREAS: The residents of the City of St. Ignace deserve streets that are maintained 
in optimal condition; and 

 
WHEREAS: The City has the duty to maintain and re-construct necessary City public 

roadways; and  
 

WHEREAS: The City is responsible for the cost of local roadway repairs and 
reconstruction; and  

 
WHEREAS: The City’s current, voted Street Millage expires on December 31st, 2023; 

and 
 

WHEREAS: The City must continue to raise the revenues that would sustain the proper 
repair and reconstruction of streets and roadways; and 

 

WHEREAS:  The City desires to renew its existing millage at the same rate and 
duration of 1.50 mills for ten (10) years; and 

 
WHEREAS: The City has determined this renewal is in the best interest of the public 

health, safety, and welfare of the City and its residents; now therefore 
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED:  The St. Ignace City Council does hereby approve the ballot language 
attached hereto as Exhibit A to be submitted to the qualified electors of the 
City of St. Ignace at the August 8, 2023 election; now further 

 
BE IT RESOLVED: The St. Ignace City Clerk is hereby directed to take the steps necessary 

and perform all tasks to provide for the election specified in this 
Resolution, which election shall be conducted in the same manner as 
elections are required to be conducted in the City under the provisions of 
Michigan Election Law; now further  

 
BE IT RESOLVED: The St. Ignace City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to submit this 

resolution and ballot language to the Mackinac County Clerk so that the 



 CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
 RESOLUTION 23-08  

ballot proposition may be approved and included at the August 8, 2023 
election; now further  

  
BE IT RESOLVED: All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the 

provisions of this resolution, are hereby repealed.    
 

Roll Call Vote: 
 
Yes:   
 
No:   
 
Absent:   
 
Resolution declared  
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution and attachment are true copies of a Resolution and 
attachment presented to the St. Ignace City Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, 
February 6, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting 
was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept or will have been made available as 
required by said Act.  

 
 
           
____________________________________ 

sb            Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 



 

 

CITY OF ST. IGNACE 

 

STREET MILLAGE PROPOSAL 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Shall the previously voted millage to fund the cost of City roadway reconstruction in the City be renewed 

at an amount of up to 1.5 mills ($1.50 per thousand dollars of taxable value) for a period of 10 years 

(2024 through 2034) and shall the City be authorized to levy this millage on all taxable property in the 

City raising an estimated $136,500.00 in the first year of the levy? 

 

(To the extent required by law, a portion of the tax levy will be captured by the Downtown Development 

Authority of the City of St. Ignace) 

 

  Yes 

  

No 



 

City of St. Ignace, MI 

 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda Date:    Presenter:  

Department:    Darcy Long, City Manager:  _________________________  

 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL EFFECT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

396 N State Street 
St. Ignace, MI. 49781 

cityofstignace.com 

This form and any background material must be approved by the City Manager then delivered to the 
City Manager’s Office by 4:00 PM the Thursday prior to the Council Meeting.   



02/02/2023                             REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ST. IGNACE                                       

                                                     PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2023                                                      

2023

ORIGINAL 2023 YTD BALANCE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET AMENDED BUDGET 02/28/2023 USED

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND

Expenditures

Dept 301 - POLICE

101-301-705.000 CHIEF'S SALARY 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-706.000 WAGES 240,000.00 240,000.00 21,779.41 9.07

101-301-707.000 WAGES, TEMPORARY 16,000.00 16,000.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-715.000 SOCIAL SECURITY 22,000.00 22,000.00 1,652.77 7.51

101-301-716.000 HEALTH FRINGES 31,000.00 31,000.00 1,305.35 4.21

101-301-716.001 SELF FUNDING HEALTH PREIMUM 5,500.00 5,500.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-717.000 LIFE INS 1,150.00 1,150.00 57.78 5.02

101-301-718.000 RETIREMENT 120,000.00 120,000.00 1,390.43 1.16

101-301-719.000 MERS 457 1,200.00 1,200.00 88.66 7.39

101-301-721.000 MESC 1,500.00 1,500.00 162.26 10.82

101-301-725.000 WORKMAN'S COMP 7,750.00 7,750.00 529.65 6.83

101-301-750.000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 4,000.00 4,000.00 317.00 7.93

101-301-755.000 UNIFORMS 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-759.000 GAS & OIL 9,500.00 9,500.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-818.000 CONTRACTED SERV 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-830.000 INVESTIGATIONS, POL 200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-853.000 COMMUNICATIONS 3,000.00 3,000.00 61.81 2.06

101-301-873.000 TRAVEL 1,100.00 1,100.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-900.000 PRINT & PUBLISH 700.00 700.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-930.001 VEHICLE MAINT 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-932.000 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-935.000 PROPERTY LIABILITY INS 9,700.00 9,700.00 4,687.52 48.32

101-301-958.000 MEMERSHIP & DUES 300.00 300.00 75.00 25.00

101-301-960.000 ED  & TRAIN 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-961.000 IN-HOUSE TRAINING, POL 302 FUND 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00

101-301-983.000 VEHICLE LEASE POLICE 24,926.00 24,926.00 2,135.44 8.57

Total Dept 301 - POLICE 582,026.00 582,026.00 34,243.08 5.88

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 582,026.00 582,026.00 34,243.08 5.88

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 582,026.00 582,026.00 34,243.08 5.88

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (582,026.00) (582,026.00) (34,243.08) 5.88



 

City of St. Ignace, MI 

 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda Date:    Presenter:  

Department:    Darcy Long, City Manager:  _________________________  

 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL EFFECT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

396 N State Street 
St. Ignace, MI. 49781 

cityofstignace.com 

This form and any background material must be approved by the City Manager then delivered to the 
City Manager’s Office by 4:00 PM the Thursday prior to the Council Meeting.   





Finance & Negotiations Committee 2-1-23  1:00pm  City Council Chambers 

Present: Mayor Willie LaLonde, Councilmember Mike Williford, Councilmember Don Gustafson 

Others Present: City Clerk-Treasurer Andrea Insley, Assistant to the City Manager Stephanie Baar, DDA 

Director Scott Marshall, Interim Police Chief Allen Mitchell, Kevin James (via Zoom) 

Meeting called to order at 1:00 pm 

Police Chief Contract: 

The committee discussed the draft employment contract with Mr. James. He requested that the 

beginning salary be $67,500 in 2023 and $70,000 in 2024, and that family health coverage begin 

immediately. He inquired about paid holidays and whether the City would pay for costs related to 

becoming MCOLES certified.  In response, the Committee proposed a salary of $60,000 (pro-rated) for 

2023 and $62,000 for 2024 with immediate family health coverage.  It was the consensus of the 

Committee that all costs associated with the required certifications be the responsibility of Mr. James. 

The proposed changes will be sent to Mr. James for review.  

The MCOLES testing dates are March 10th and 11th, the Committee agreed to require that certification 

be obtained by April 1st and that he would not become a City employee until it’s completed.  

Police Union Contract Language:  

Vacation buy-out: Vacation buy-out was included in the previous POLC Union contract, but is not in the 

current FOP Union contract.  It has been discussed including it back in, as officers are very limited in 

their ability to take vacation due to staffing levels.  The City will check with the FOP Union Rep to see if 

this was intentionally negotiated out, or if it was inadvertently omitted.  

Assumption of Chief Duties: When Sgt. Mitchell was appointed as Interim Chief there was discussion 

with former Manager Long regarding an associated pay increase. The current FOP Union contract does 

not specify what the pay should be for an Interim Chief. The Committee agrees recommending that Sgt. 

Mitchell receive a pay increase to $28/hr retroactively  for his time worked as Interim Chief, and until 

such time the Chief position is occupied.  The pay rate of $28/hr is in-line with what former Chief Brown 

was being compensated. ($60,000 / 26pp / 80h = $28.85) 

Marina Temporary Support Staff: 

Marina Director Joe Stearns has hired former Director Tim Matelski to assist him with winter 

maintenance operations at the Marina docks.  Mr. Matelski has prior technical expertise with the 

bubbler system at the Marina, and it would be difficult to find someone else with the same knowledge 

at a comparable rate. The committee agrees to recommend approving his temporary support at the 

Marina at a rate of $25/hr for 90 days.  

Staff Vacancies/Organizational Needs: 

Ms. Baar recommended that the City hire an Organizational Consultant to assess the needs in 

operations, staffing, services, etc. and make recommendations to improve efficiency. There have been 

many recent staffing changes and transfer of duties.  A clear structure for job descriptions and duties is 

not established, and when vacancies occur there’s usually some shifting to ensure duties don’t go 



undone.  An organizational consultant could help to better understand where duties can most efficiently 

lie and whether some services would be better done outsourced.  

The Committee agreed it would be beneficial and, although timing is poor, it may be more appropriate 

to wait until a City Manager is appointed to participate. 

Ms. Baar’s position will be vacant beginning March 25th. The Committee would like to hold off on filling 

the position until a City Manager is hired.  

Other Items of Discussion: 

Mr. Gustafson suggested submitting a request to the Sault Tribe for assistance with funding the new 

Sutphen fire truck.  A request will be submitted in letter form, similar to what was done with the County.  

T. Brown Request:  The request from Tony Brown for the City to pay fees for attorney services Mr. 

Brown received for his employment contract was raised at the previous City Council meeting. An invoice 

was received for attorney services related to his separation agreement, but those costs were never 

agreed to be paid by the City.  Ms. Baar discussed the issue with Attorney Palmer, who was unaware of 

any invoices or agreement to pay such for his employment contract signed in early 2022. Mr. Palmer 

also asked former Manager Long about the issue, and Mr. Long stated there was never a promise to pay 

attorney fees. Ms. Baar searched Mr. Long’s former e-mail inbox for any related messages or invoices, 

and saw none. There is no record of any promise or agreement to pay his attorney fees, and no invoices 

were ever received regarding his contract that we are aware of.  

Interim Management Team:  A temporary pay increase for the Interim City Management Team had been 

raised at a previous meeting.  It was the consensus of the Committee to recommend that each  

employee of the team receive additional pay of $125/week for the duration of the appointment.  

 

Meeting adjourned at 3:17pm 

 

sb/adi 



Streets Committee 1-25-23  10:00 am  City Council Chambers 

Present: Willie LaLonde, Robert St. Louis, Bill Fraser, Brian Olsen, and Scott Marshall 

Absent: Bryce Tracy, Paul Fullerton, Steven Paquin 

Staff Present: Assistant to the City Manager Stephanie Baar 

Meeting was called to order at 10:03 a.m. 

 

Bid requests for the 2023 Street Paving Projects were out for about 3 weeks, and 4 bids were received. 

Payne and Dolan were the low bidder at $391,220. The cost is less than we budgeted for, but there will 

be additional costs as DPW will be doing about a week’s worth of prep work. The work will be done in 

the Spring.  

The DDA takes in TIF money to repair streets in the downtown district, and agreed to contribute $75,000 

to this year’s project.  

Neighboring home & business owners will be notified of the work once we know dates.  

Other projects to be considered for work: 2nd street and the area around City Hall. 

We are still trying to obtain funding for the Water & Sewer Infrastructure project that will see many 

street repairs in conjunction. We should hear back around June on whether or not our application will 

be funded. If not, we will keep submitting.  

The committee agrees to recommend accepting Payne & Dolan’s bid to the Council. Bid approval and 

ballot language approval will be on the February 6th council agenda. The ballot language can then be 

sent in to be on the ballot in August’s election.  

 

The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, April 12th at 10:00am.  

 

Meeting adjourned at 10:33 a.m.  


	untitled1: 2-6-23
	untitled2: Assessor
	untitled3: Nick Couture
	untitled4: 2023 Poverty Exemption Policy
	untitled6: The city council must annually adopt poverty guidelines as required by MCL 211.7u. PA 253 of 2020 was passed and made changes to how poverty exemptions are approved. In summary, the new Act removed any discretion the local Board of Review had to deviate from the guidelines. In the past, if a property owner was slightly above the poverty income guidelines, the Board of Review could still grant some relief to the taxpayer for reasons of poverty. Now, there can be no deviation from the guidelines. It is for this reason that we are recommending the poverty income levels in the adopted guidelines be increased by 20% to allow Board of Review discretion if a taxpayer falls close to the income levels.  The Board of Review could grant a partial or full exemption in these cases.   
	untitled7: Minimal. Each year the local unit has very few poverty exemption requests.   Most units have between 1-3 people request this exemption annually.   
	untitled8: See attached proposed Policy & Guidelines
	untitled9: I recommend that the City Council approve the presented Poverty Exemption Policy & Guidelines
	untitled5: 
	untitled10: 
	untitled11: 
	untitled12: 
	untitled13: 
	untitled14: 
	untitled15: 
	untitled16: 
	untitled17: 
	untitled18: 
	untitled19: 
	untitled20: 
	untitled21: Off
	untitled22: Off
	untitled23: Off
	untitled24: Off
	untitled25: Off
	untitled26: Off
	untitled27: Off
	untitled28: Off
	untitled29: Off
	untitled30: Off
	untitled31: Off
	untitled32: Off
	untitled33: 
	untitled34: 
	untitled30[0]: 
	untitled20[0]: Off
	untitled28[0]: 
	untitled29[0]: 


